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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE
The Peterson House was built after the Civil War, circa 1869-70, in the asymmetrical
Italian villa style. The structure retains its architectural integrity with the exception of
the front porch which replaced the original porch some time after 1898 according to infor-
mation in a family scrapbook, and a few minor alterations and additions.
The residence is of brick on a limestone foundation, painted white, and is two stories in
height. The building is asymmetrical and has two bays in the projection of the east side
of the facade. The west side of the facade contains a double entrance door topped by a
segmental-arched clear-glass transom and two bays. The west side of the facade has a
columned stone porch which meanders around to the west side. of the house. ..This deep
porch, which dates after 1898, replaced a shallower porch with cut-out wooden spmdle
trim, There is also an entrance at the south -end of the porch, whose western portlon is

£

now screened in. , ‘ _ -

The fenestration on the main portion of the house consists of tall, narrow, two-over-two-
paned windows. The segmental arched windows are topped by decorative cast-iron hoods
with a modified fleur-de-lis motif at the center. The windows on the east side of the
structure are topped by a segmental arch of header bricks. The east side of the house

is further marked by a large projecting chimney which has a balustrade at the second-

story floor line. The second-story fenestration is analogous to the first story's with the
exception of a double window over the entrance door. Over each window on the second floor
is a cast-iron rosette, which actually functions as a ventilator in the attic —- still an
effective equivalent of air-conditioning.

The structure is topped by an extended cornice which is underscored by pairs of elaborate
brackets and by consoles and dentils. Situated at the center of the structure on the roof
is an octagonal cupola with round-arched windows. The cupola also has a cornice under-
- scored by brackets and dentils and is topped by a cast-iron finial. 1It, too, serves to
provide ventilation, as well as light to the central stairwell.

The rear wing is two stories high but has shorter windows and therefore is not so tall

as the main portion of the structure. There is a frame addition on the rear wing on the
east side, as well as other minor additions and changes of fenestratmn.

The interior has been altered somewhat but still retains a nineteenth-century aura. A
graceful semi-spiral staircase, at one point detached from the wall, rises from the main
hallway and culminates in the cupola. The trim is standard mid-century Italianate.

Also on the well-treed three-acre lot is a two-story unpainted stucco structure which has
both garage space and residential space. The building, which faces Peterson Avenue, has

(continued)
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE
This res1dence, orlgmally bu:lt as a pountryhouse about 1869 70 1s 1n the Ita11an villa style.
It is one of the very. few remaining {homes in thlS style mLoulsvﬂle and one of the last
two survwlng viIlas 1n drescentHﬂl, a res1dent1a1 area on the hﬂls east of Lou1sv111e between

the downtown and the later),mrore fashlonable suburlps 'farther east

. Crescent ];-I:ll has been )

for more than a century an upper mlddle- or m1dd1e—class area of mostly frame hoqses on .
streets perpendicular to the former commuter railway line along the old turnplke (now

Frankfort Avenue) that led to Frankfort.

In the mid- and late 19th-century, however, a

‘number of ambitious villas on large garden lots were located south of Frankfort Avenue

overlooking a shallow valley (now Grinstead Avenue).

(See the details from the 1879 and 1884 atlases

attached.) Of the twoother such villas surviving, one was irreparably damaged in the 1974 tornado.

Appropriately, the Peterson-Dumesnil House was built for a prominent merchant, Joseph
Peterson, active in the tobacco trade that still forms one of the bases of Louisville's-~
and of course Kentucky's--economy. Moreover, Peterson was also associated with the
construction of some of the most prominent and significant late 19th-century commergial

structures in the city.

Upon his death in October of 1889 the Louisville Leaf Tobacco

Exchange passed a resolution which, in part, stated that "He was not only an important
factor in the tobacco trade but was also one of the most prominent and enterprising citizens

of Louisville...."

According to his obituary Peterson, with his accumulated fortune, had

"... built many of the handsome and best structures which adorn our streets." He was
responsible for several structures which were built in the West Main Street Historic

District (listed on the National Register in March 1974).
Company Buﬂdmg built at 731 West Main Street.
of his granddaughters.

He had the Carter Dry Goods
It was called "The Two Sisters'" in honor
The structure was designed by C. J. Clarke in 1878. Peterson

also had the Fort Nelson Bulldlng, on the northwest corner of Elghth and Main Streets,

built in circa 1888-89.

In addition, Peterson, at his death owned the structure on the

northeast corner of Sixth and Market Streets which was then occupied by Philip Hollenbach.
Peterson also owned a storehouse on Main Street between Fifth and Sixth which was pur-

chased by C. C. Bickel in 1889,

Peterson had stock in the Exposition Company which

sponsored the 1883-87 Southern Exposition in Louisville, and in the Crescent Hill Railway

Company. Thus, his career is an interesting illustration of the interrelationship between commerce,

civic development, and architecture both urban and suburban in later 19-th century Louisville.

(continued)
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VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION
The property on which the Peterson-Dumesnil House is located consists of five tax lots in the
City of Louisville, Block 71-B, Lots 7,8,9,11 and 33. The property line begins at the point of
the northeast corner of Peterson Avenue and an alley running east to west between Peterson Ave.
and Galt Avenue. Thence the line runs south for 401'5'". At the northeast corner of Peterson

“Ave. and an alley the line runs east for 227'10". Thence it turns 90° and runs south for 90, thence

it turns 90° and runs east for 217'10", thence makes another 90° turn and runs south for 100’
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a peaked gable porch, small windows and a scalloped barge board trim under the cornice.
The rear of the structure has garage doors and an inset gallery on the south side of the
second story. The wood trim is painted white. This structure may well antedate the
main house, as its proportions and details seem early, but no date for it is known.

One of the interesting species of the many trees on the property is an extremely large
ginkgo tree behind the main structure.

A barn structure and the formal gardens in the front and rear are no longer extant.

#6 (continued)
Metropolitan Preservation Plan, 1973 (county). Kentuckiana Regional Planning and
Development Agency. Louisville, Kentucky.
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Peterson's only child, his daughter Carrie, became the second wife of Jacob H. Lindenberger
(1824-1900) who owned a property adjacent to the Petersons' in Crescent Hill. Lindenberger
was a prominent Louisvillian who was president of the Merchant's National Bank and was
involved in many civic endeavors. Jacob and Carrie Lindenberger's two daughters, Carrie
and Eliza, married Edward Roland and Harry Dumesnil, respectively. Harry Dumesnil

(b. 1859), whose ancestors were from France, became president of the Carter Dry Goods
Company. His mother was Mary Orsmby and his father, along with his brother-in-law

Collis Ormsby, helped to develop Cedar Hill Farms into the Old Louisville area of today.

Oral tradition has attributed Peterson's country home to the well-known Louisville architect,
Henry Whitestone (1819-1893). Whitestone designed other asymmetrical Italian villa
residences both in Louisville and in the surrounding countryside. Peterson's home is the
only remaining country residence in the Italian villa style which has been attributed to
Whitestone. No direct sources link Whitestone to the Peterson home although Peterson

was active in the tobacco business on Main Street and Whitestone designed a number of
structures on Main Street. It is interesting to speculate whether C. J. Clarke (1836-1908)
who designed the Carter Dry Goods Company structure for Peterson in 1878, could have

been involved in the design of Peterson's home. Clarke, according to one source, worked
with Whitestone prior to the Civil War. Clarke thenwrkedwithBradshaw and Brothers in
Louisville during the 1860's and is first listed with his own firm in the 1870 city directory.
Peterson's residence was built circa 1869-1870. The architect for the Fort Nelson Building,
unfortunately, is unknown at this time, but further speculation can be made as to Peterson's
connection with architects in the area. Two of the other structures he owned in Louisville are
attributed to D. X. Murphy (1854-1933) who worked as a draftsman in the office of Whitestone
and later took over the firm. With these various connections the attribution of the house

to Whitestone becomes plausible. The structure is definitely within the realm of the forms
employed by Whitestone which included both the Barryesque Palazzo and the freer-villa modes.
The classicism of the Peterson residence is much closer to Whitestone's oeuvre than to
Clarke's predominantly Gothic and later Richardsonian Romanesque works.

This fine structure has been well-maintained and remains in a gracious, maturely
landscaped setting. It is an excellent example of the many fine country homes which

once graced the area and is one of very few extant. The Italian villa style was very
popular locally as well as nationally and this residence is a good example of its kind,
whether designed by Whitestone or another local architect who, like him, continued the Italianate
vogue of the 1850s until well after the Civil War,
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Jefferson County Inventory and Settlement Book 55,

Obituaries of Joseph Peterson, The Courier-Journal (Louisville), October 23, 1889; The Louisville
Commercial, October 22, 1889.

Bodley, Temple. History of Kentucky: The Bluegrass State. Chicago: S.J. Clarke Publishing
Co., 1928,

McCurdy, Mary Lucille, Field Study Report for Institute of Community Development, University
of Louisville, 1958,

The School-Community Observer, Louisville Board of Education, v.2, No. 3 (November 1967).

The Voice-Jeffersonian (St. Matthews, Kentucky), October 18, 1973.

Falls of the Ohio Metropolitan Council of Governments. Metropolitan Preservation Plan., Text
and selection by Walter E. Langsam. U,S. Department of Housing and Urban Development,
1973.

Interview with Mrs. S.G. Miller (Jean Dumesnil), May 1975.

Dumesnil Family Scrapbook (in the possession of Mrs. S.G. Miller).

#10 Geographical Data (continued)

whereupon it again turns 90° and runs east for 130'. Thence it makes a 90° turn and runs north
for 440' along Galt Ave. At Rowland Ave. the line makes a 900 turn and runs west for 170' on
Rowland whereupon it makes a 90° turn and runs north again on Galt Ave, for 228'5" whereupon

it makes a 90° turn and runs west for 405'8" to the beginning point.
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'

Detail showing property of J. Peterson, including outline of
the Peterson-Dumesnil House, in center.
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